UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT i AT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS, WACO DIVISION ™'

"~ 23 2004

OFRICT COURT
CT OF Texas

wPUTY ciips

Federal Trade Commission,
Plaintiff,
V.
Electronic Financial Group, Inc.,
EFG Card Services, Inc.,

Paul McClinton, .
individually and as an officer of
Electronic Financial Group, Inc. and
EFG Card Services, Inc.,

Jerry Federico,
individually and as an officer of
Electronic Financial Group, Inc. and
EFG Card Services, Inc. and

Randy Balusek,

* individually and as an officer of
Electronic Financial Group, Inc.,

Defendants.

Civ. No. W-03-CA-211

Nt e e N e e S

) STIPULATED ORDER
) FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION
) AND MONETARY JUDGMENT

e e S i ) P N g N S N Ny

Plaintiff Federal Trade Commission (“Commission” or “FTC”), filed its Complaint for a

Permanent Injunction and Other Relief in this matter, pursuant to Sections 13(b) and 19(a) of the

Federal Trade Commission Act (“FTC Act™), 15 U.S.C. §§ 53(b) and 57b(a), and the

Telemarketing and Consumer Fraud and Abuse Prevention Act (“Telemarketing Act™), 15

U.S.C. §§ 6101 et seq., charging that Defendants engaged in deceptive and unfair acts or
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practices in violation of Section 5 of the FTC Ac't.C 15 U.S.C. §45, and that Defendants provided

“substantial assistance and support to deceptive telemarketers in violation of Section 3 10.3(b) of

the Telemarkéting Sales Rule, 16 C..F.R. § 310.3(b). The Commission and Defendants, as
hereinafter defined, hereby stipulate to the entry of this Stipulated Order for Permanent
Injunction and Monetary Judgment (“Order”) to resolve all matters of dispute between them in
this action.
IT IS THEREFORE STIPULATED, AGREED, AND ORDERED AS FOLLOWS:
FINDINGS OF FACT |
1. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this case and-the parties
pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a), 53(b), 57(b), 6101(b), and 6102(c), as well as 28
U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1337(a), and 1345.
2. Venue in this District is prope'r under 15 U.S.C. § 53(b) and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b)
and (c).
3. The activities of Defendants are in or affecting “commerce,” as that term is
defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, 1_5 US.C §44.
4 The Complaint states a claim upon which relief may be granted against
Defendants under Sections 5(a), 13(b), and 19 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§
45(a), 53(b), and 57(b).
5. Defendants have entered into this Order freely and without coercion. Defendants
further acknowledge that they have read the provisions of this Order and are
prepared to abide by them. |

6. The undersigned, individually and by and through their counsel, have agreed that
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10.

the entry of this Order resolves all matters of dispute between them arising from
the Complaint in this action, up to the date of entry of this Order.

Defendants waive all tights to seck appellate review or otherwise challenge or
contest the validity of this Order. Defendants further waive and release any claim

they may have against the Commission, its employees, representatives, or agents.

" Defendants agree that this Order does not entitle Defendants to seek or to abtain

attorneys’ fees as a prevailing party under the Equal Access to Justice Act, 28
U.S.C. § 2412, as amended by Pub. L. No. 104-121, 1 10 Stat. 847, 863-64 (1996),
and Defendants further waive any right to attorneys’ fees that may arise under
said provision of law. |

The parties have conferred through counsel and have agreed to settle this action
without the Defendants admitting fault or liability or any wrongdoing whatsoevef .
in comnection with the violations alleged in the Complaint. By entry of this
Order, the Defendants do admit the jurisdictional facts alleged in the Complaint.
There being 110 just reason for delay, the Clerk is directed to enter judgment
immediately.

DEFINITIONS

For purposes of this Order, the following definitions shall apply:

1.

“ACH network” shall mean the electronic funds transfer system governed by the
NACHA Operating Rules that provides for the interbank clearing of credit and
debit entries to accounts at financial institutions.

“ACH transaction” shall mean any completed or attempted debit or credit to a
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consumer’s account at a financial institution that is procéssed electronically
through the automated clearing house (“ACH”) network.

A ccess Device” shall be defined according to the definition provided in
Regulation E of the Electronic Fund Transfer Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1693 et seq.
“Corporate. Defendants” shall mean Electronic Financial Group, Inc., EFG Card
Services, Inc., and eac;h of them, whether acting directly or through any
corporation, subsidiary, division, or other device.

“Credit.card” shall be defined according to the definition provided in Regulation
7 of the Truth in Lending Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1601 et seq., currently defined as any
card, plate, coupon book, or other single credit device that may be used from time
to time té obtain credit.

“Debit card” shall mean any pay-as-you-go card, ATM card, or Access Device
that purports to facilitate purchases drawn on a consumer deposit or asset account,
including buf not limited to the First Freedom card, AmeriOne card, United USA
card, and any good or serviée that is represented, directly or indirectly, to have the
characteristics of a debit card, even if the good or service fails to fulfill such
representation in fact. “Debit card” does not' mean “Payroll card” as defined

herein.

" “Defendants” shall mean Electronic Financial Group, Inc. (“EFG”), EFG Card

Services, Inc. (“Card Services”), Paul McClinton, Jerry Federico, and Randy

Balusek.

“Document” shall be synonymous in meaning and equal in scope to the usage of
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10.

11

13.

the term in Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 34(a), and includes writings,
drawingé, graphs, charts, photographs; audio and video recordings, computer
records, and other data compilations from which information can be obtained and
translated, if necessary, into reaéonably usable form through detection devices. A
draft or non-identical copy is a separate document within the meaning of the term.
“Individual Defendants” shall mean Paul McClinton, Jerry Federico, and Randy
Balusek.

“NACHA” shall mean the National Automated Clearing House Association.
“Payroll card” shall mean any Access Device not marketed or sold directly to
individual cardholders, whereby employer-purchasers use the card as a means of
compensating employee-cardholders.

«“Plaintiff’ shall mean the Federal Trade Commission.

“Telemarketing” shall mean any business activity, regardless of whether or not
covered by the Telemarketing Sales Rule, 16 C.F.R. Part 310, that involves

atterapts to induce consumers to purchase goods, services, or investments, by

- means of telephone sales presentations, either exclusively or in corjunction with

the use of other forms of marketing.

BAN ON PROCESSING FOR TELEMARKETING OPERATIONS

L

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Defendants are hereby permanently restrained and

enjoined from processing any ACH transaction or causing the account of any consumer to be
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debited by any means, where the consumer purportedly authorized the debit as a result of

telemarketing.

BAN ON MARKETING, SALE, PROVISION OF CUSTOMER SERVICE, OR
EARNING OF FEES IN CONNECTION WITH DEBIT CARDS OR CREDIT CARDS

II.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Corporate Defendants and defendants McClinton

and Federico are hereby permanently restrained and enjoined from:

A. Advertising, marketing, promoting, offering for sale, or selling any debit card or
credit card;
B. Providing customer service in connection with the advertising, marketing,

promotion, offering for sale, or sale of any debit card or credit card; and

C. Eaming any fees from the conduct proscribed in Section II.A and B.

This provision shall not be construed to prevent Defendants from providing ACH
processing for transactions involving debit cards or credit cards and collecting ACH processing
fees charged for such transactions, provided the ACH transaction does not violate any provision
of this Order including, but not limited to, Sections I, ITI, TV, V and VL

' PROHIBITION AGAINST VIOLATING TELEMARKETING SALES RULE
1L

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants, their successorsv, assigns, officers,
agents, .servants, empl.oyees, and those persons in active concert or participation with them who
receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or otherwise, whether acting directly or
through any corporation., subsidiary, division, or othér device, are hereby permanently restrained

and enjoined from violating any provision of the Telemarketing Sales Rule (“TSR”), 16 C.F.R.
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Part 310, including any act which assists or facilitates a violation of the TSR as set forth in 16
C.F.R. § 310.3(b), including but not limited to providing substantial assistance or support 1o any
telemarketer or seller vwho:

A Induces consumers to pay for goods or services through the use of faise or
misleading statements in violation of Section 310.3(a)(4) of the Telemarketing
Sales Rule;

B. Falsely represents that after paying an advance fee, consumers are guaranteed or
highly likely to receive a credit card i violation of Section 310.4(a)(4) of the
Telemarketing Sales Rulf;:; or

C. Requests or receives an advance fee or other consideration for goods or services
represented to improve a person’s credit history, credit record, or credit rating in
violation of Section 310.4(a)(2) of the Telemarketing Sales Rule.

| 'CONDUCT PROHIBITIONS
IV.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants, their successors, assigns, officers, |
agents, servants, employees, and those persons in active concert or participation with them who
receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or-otherwise, whether acting directly or
through any corporation, subsidiary, division, or other device, are hereby permanently restrained
and enjoined from processing, by ACH Network or any other means, any transaction where:

A. Defendants receive information derﬁonstrating that the consumer has requested

cancellation of the purchase to which the debit or charge relates or discontinuance

of any debits or charges related to the purchase;
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B. Defendants fail to compiy with any NACHA rule regarding consumer
authorization Qf debits for transactions involving the PPD, TEL, or WEB standard
entry class codes;

C. Defendants do not possess documnents that demonstrate that the business practices
of the originator, or any otﬁer person who transmits the ACH transaction to
Defendants, comply with any applicablc'NACHA fules regarding consumer
authorization of debits for ﬁansactions in_volving the PPD, TEL, or WEB standard
entry class codes; or

D. Defendants receive information demonstrating that the business practices of the
originator or any other person who transmits the transaction to Defendants do not
comply with the FTC’s Telemarketing Sales Rule, applicable NACHA rules, or
other applicable law. |

V.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that in connection with the advertising, marketing,
promotion, offering for sale, or sale of goods or seMces, Defendants, their successors, assigns,
officers, agents, servants, employees, and those persons in active concert or participation with
them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or otherwise, whether acting
directly or through any corporation, suBsidia.ry, division, or other device, are permanently
restrained and enjoined from falsely representing or assisting others in falsely representing,
expressly or by implication, orally or in writing, any fact material to a consumer’s decision to

purchase such goods or services.
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V1.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that in connection with the advertising, marketing, .
promotion, offering for sale, or sale of goods or services, except processing any transaction by
ACH Netwérk or any other means on behalf of third parties, Defendants, their successors,
assigns, officers, agents, servants, employees, and those persons in active concert or participation
with them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or otherwise, whether
acting direc‘:tlly or through any éorpo;z;tion, subsidiary, division, or other device, are permanently
restrained and enjoined from causing a consumer’s credit card, debit carﬂ, or bank account to be
charged without having previously obtained the consumer’s express veﬁﬁable authorization.

CONSUMER REDRESS
VIL

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants shall pay consumer redress in the amdunt
of $3,935,338 by wire transfer, subject to any offset from any funds in any escrow account
maintained by the Monitor as referenced in Section XVI.C, into an account to be dest gnated by
the FTC (“Redress Account™) on or before the thirtieth (30th) day following entry of this Order,
subject to the following terms and condiﬁons:

A.  Defendants shall have no obligation to make any payment to the FTC pdor to the

entry of this Order;

B. Defendants have placed One Million Dollars ($l,DO0,000) into a trust account at

the law firm of Howrey Simon Amold & White to be held and transferred to the

Refund Account within three (3) days after ehtry of this Order by the Court; and
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C. Defendants shall transfer an additional $2,935,338 into the Redress Account
on or befo‘re the thirtieth (30th) day following entry of this Order by the Court,
‘less any offset from funds wired by the Monitor to the Redress Account pursuant
to Section XV1.C of this Order.
COMMISSION’S USE OF MONETARY JUDGMENT
VIIIL.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that all funds paid to the Commission or its designated
agent(s) pursuant to Section VII of this Order shall be deposited into a fund administered by the
Commission or its agent to be used for equitable relief, including but not limited to consumer
redress and any attendant expenses for the administration of any redress tund. In th,é event that
direct redress to consumers is wholly or partially impracticable or that funds remain after redress
is comi:leted, the Commission may apply any remaining funds for such other equitable relief
(including consumer information remedies) as it determines to be reasonably related to
Defendants’ practices alleged in the Complaint. Any funds not used for such equitable relief
shall be deposited into the United States Treasury as disgorgement. Defendants shall have no
right to challenge the Commission’s choice of remedies under this Section.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ORDER
IX.

JT IS FURTHER ORDERED that each Defendant, within five (5) business days of

receipt of this Order as entered by the Court, shall submit to the Commis.sion.'a truthful swom

staternent, acknowledging receipt of this Order.
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DISTRIBUTION OF ORDER BY DEFENDANTS

X.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that:

A,

Defendants as Control Persons: For a period of five (5) years from the date of
entry of this Order, for any business that engages in conduct related to the subject
matter of this Order or the FTC’s Complaint, which Defendants direct]y‘ or
indirectly control, or in which Defendants have a majority ownership interest,
Defendants shall deliver a copy of this Order to all principals, officers, directors,
and managers of that business. Defcndémts shall also deliver copies of this Order
to all employees, agents, and representatives who engage in conduct related to the
subject matter of the Order. For current personnel, delivery shall be within
twenty (20) days of service of this Order upon Defendants. For new personnel,
delivery shall occur prior to them assuming their respousibilities.

Corporate Defendants and Defendants McClinton and Federico as employees
or non-control persons: For a period _of five (5) years from the date of entry of
this Order, for any business where the Corporate Defendants or Deféndaﬁts
McClinton and Federico are not a controlling person of a business but otherwise
engage in conduct related to the subject matter of this Order, the Defendants shall
deliver a copy of this Order to all .principals and managers of such business.
Defendant Balu;sek as an employee or non-control person: For a period of
three (3) years from the date of entry of this Order, for any business where

Defendant Balusek is not a controlling person of a business but otherwise engages
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in conduct related to the subject matter of this Order, the Defendant Balusek shall
deliver a copy of this Order to all principals and managers of such business.
Defer_ldants must secure 2 signed and dated statement acknowledging receipt of the
Order, within thirty (30) days of delivery, from all persons receiving a copy of the Order
bursuant to this paragraph.
COMPLIANCE REPORTING BY DEFENDANTS
XL
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, in order that compliance with the provisions of this
Order may be monitored:
A For a period of five (5) years frpm the date of entry of this Order:
1. Each Individual Dé,fendant shall notify the Commission in writing of any
of the fo]lowing:

a. Any changes in residence, mailing addresses, and telephone
numbers of the Individual Defendant, within twenty (20) days of
the date of such change;

b. Any change in employment status (including self-employmcnt) of
the Individual Defendant, and any change in the ownership interest
of the Individual Defendant in any business entity that engages in
conduct related to the subject matter of this Order or the FTC’s
Complaint, within twenty (20) days of such change. Such notice
shall include the name and address of each business that thé

Individual Defendant is affiliated with, employed by, creates or
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B.

forms, or performs services for, a statement of the nature of the
business, and a statement of the Individual Defendant’s duties and

responsibilities in connection with the business or employment;

and
c. Any changes in the Individual Defendant’s name;
2. Each Individual Defendant and Corporate Defendant shall notify the

Commission of any changes in the structure of the Corporate Defendants,
or any business entity that the Individual Defendants directly or indirectly
control, or have an ownership interest in, that may affect complianc_é
obligations arising under this Order, including but not limited to a
dissolution, assignment, sale, merger, or other action that would result in
the emergence of a successor entity; the creation or dissolution of a
subsidiary, parent, or affiliate that engages in any acts or pﬁctices subject
to this Order; the filing of a bankruptcy petition; or a change in the
corporate name or address, at least thirty (30) days prior to such change,
provided that, with respect to any proposed change in the bﬁsiness entity
about which the Defendants leamn less than thirty (30) days prior to the
dat¢ such action is to take place, the Defendants shall notify the
Commission as soon as is practicable after obtaining such knowledge;
One hundred eighty (180) days after the date of entry of this Order, Defendants
shall provide a written report to the Commissioﬁ, swomn under penalty of pegjury,

setting forth in detail the manncr and form in which they have complied and are
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complying with this Order. This report shall include, but not necessarily be
limited to, the following:
1. For each Individual Defendant:
a. The then-current residence address, mailing addresses, and
telej)hone numbers of the Individual Defendant; |
b. The then-current employment and business addresses and
telephone numbers of the Individual Defendant, a description of
the business activities of each such employer or business, and the
title and responsibilities of the Individual Defendant, for each such
employer or busim;ss; and
c. Any other changes required to be reported under subd. A of this
Section;
2. For all Defendants:
a. A copy of each acknowledgment of receipt of this Order, obtained
pursuant to Section X; and
b. Any other changes required to be reported under subd. A of this
Section;
For a period of five (5) years from the date of entry of this Order, within five (5)
business days of receipt, Defendants shall provide Plaintiff with all notices of
NACHA rules violations and 'related comrespondence regarding customer
authorizatibn involving any of Defendanis® ACH transactions for the PPD, TEL,

and WEB standard entry class codes;
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For the purposes of this Order, the Defendants shall, unless otherwise directed by
a representative of the Commission, identify all written notifications to the FTC

as being in reference to FIC v. Electronic Financial Group, United States District

~ Court, Western District of Texas, Waco Division, Case No. W-03-CA-211, and

mail them to:

Associate Director

Division of Marketing Practices

Federal Trade Commission

600 Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Rm. 238

Washington, DC 20580
For purposes of the compliance reporting and monitoring required by this Order,
the Commission is authorized to communicate directly with the Defendants in
writing, with a copy to counsel of record.

MONITORING COMPLIANCE OF SALES PERSONNEL

XIL

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, in connection with any business that Defendants

directly or indirectly manage, control, or have a majority ownership interest in and such business

engages in conduct related to the subject matter of this Order or the FTC’s Complaint,

Defendants are permanently restrained and enjoined from:

A.

Failing to take reasonable steps sufficient to monitor and ensure that all
employees and independent contractors engaged in sales or other customer service
functions comply with Sections IV and V of this C/Sfder;

Failing to investigate fully and promptly any consumer complaint received by any

business to which this Section applies;
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Failing to take corrective action with respect to any salesperson whom the
Defendants determine is not complying with this Order, which may include
training, disciplining, and/or terminating such sales person; and .
Failing to keep records of consumer complaints and the monitoring of consumer
compla;mts.

RECORD-KEEPING PROVISIONS

XIIIL

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for a period of eight (8) years. from the date of entry

of this Order, Corporate Defendants and any businesses where any Individual Defendant is the

majority owner or otherwise controls the business and such business engages in conduct related

to the subject matter of this Order or the FTC’s Complaint, are hereby permanently restrained

and enjoined from failing to create and retain the following records:

A,

Accounting records that reflect the cost of goods or services sold, revenues
generated, and the disbursement of such revenues;

Personnel records accurately reflecting: the name, address, and telephone number
of each person employed in ahy capacity by such business, inc_luding as an
independent contractor; that person’s job title or position; the date upon which the
person commenced work; and the date and reason for the person'’s termination, if
applicable;

Customer files containing the nﬁmes, addresses, phone numbers, dollar amounts

paid, quantity of items or services purchased, and description of items or services
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purchased, to the extent such information is obtained in the ordinary course of .

business;

Complaints and refund requests (whether received directly, indirectly, or through

any third party) and any responses to those complaints or requests;

Copies of all sales scripts, training materials, advertisements, or other marketing

materials, including e-mail and Interet websites or web pages, regarding any

good, service, company or website disseminated by any Defendant to any person,

and

All records and documents necessary to demonstrate full compliance with each

‘provision of this Order, including but not limited fo documents related to Section

IV.D, copies of acknowledgment of receipt of this Order required by Sections IX |

and X, and all reports submitted to the FTC pursuant to Section XL
COMMISSION’S AUTHORITY TO MONITOR COMPLIANCE

X1V,

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for a period of five (5) years from the date of entry

of this Order, for the purpose of monitoring and investigating compliance with any provision of

this Order:

A.

Within twenty (20) days of receipt of written notice from a representative of the
Commission, Defendants shall submit additional written reports, swomn to under
penalty of perjury; produce documents for inspection and copying; appear for

deposition; and/or provide entry during normal business hours to any business
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location in such Defendant’s possession or direct or indirect control to inspecf the
business operation;
B. . Inaddition, the Commission is authorized to monitor compliance with this Order

by all other lawful means, including but not limited to the following:

1. OBtaining discovery from any person, without further leave of court, using
the procedures prescribed by Fed. R. Civ. P, 30, 31, 33, 34, 36, and 45;
and |

2. Posing as consumers and suppliers to Defendants, Defendants’ employees,
or any other entity managed or controlled in whole or in part by |

Defendants, without the necessity of identification or prior notice; and

C. Defendants shall permit representatives of the Commission to interview any

employer, consultant, independent contractor, representative, officer, agent, or

employee who has agreed to such an interview, relating in any way fo any

conduct subject to this Order. The person interviewed may have counsel present.
Provided, however, that‘nothing in this Order shall limit the Comtnission’s lawful use of
compulsory process, pursuant to Sections 9 and 20 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 49 and
57b-1, to obtain any documentary material, tan giblé things, testimony, or information
relevant to unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce (within the

meaning of 15 U.S.C, § 45(a)(1)).
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FEES AND COSTS

XV.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that cach party to this Order hereby agrees to bear its

own costs and attorneys’ fees incurred in connection with this action.

DISCHARGE OF MONITOR; MONITOR’S COMPENSATION

XVL

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that:

A.

Upon entry of this Order, all rights, authority, duties, and responsibilities of the
Mc;nitor shall terminate;

The Monitor and all personnel hired by the Monitor are entitled to reasonable
compensation for the performance of duties pursuant to prior orders in this case,
as well as for payment of costs for actual out-of-pocket expenses, subject to
approval of such compensation and costs by this Court. The compensation and
costs of the Monitor shall be paid from the corporate assets of the Defendants.
The Monitor shall file with the Court and serve on the parties a request for the
payment of all reasonable compensation and out-of-pocket costs that have not
heretofore been paid within sixty (60) days after entry of this Order; and
Within three (3) days of entry of this Order by the Court, the Monitor shall wire
all funds, if any, remaining in any escrow account maintained by the Momitor

pursuant to Paragraph II.B of the Stipulated Preliminary Injunction to the Redress
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Account as described in Section VII of this Order in partial satisfaction of the
consumer redress as set forth in Section V1I of this Order. |
RETENTION OF JURISDICTION
XVIL
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Court shall retain jurisdiction of this matter for
purposes of construction, modification, and enforcement of this Order. |
SEVERABILITY
XVIIL
ITIS FURTHER ORDERED that the provisions 6f thi.s Order are separate and severable
from one another. If any provision is stayed or determined to be invalid, the remaining provisions
shall remain in full force and effect.
COMPLETE SETTLEMENT
XIX.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the parties hereby consent to entry of the foregoing
Order which shall constitute a final judgment and order in this matter. The parties further
stipulate and agree that the entry of the foregoing order shall constitute a full, complete, and ﬁnal

settlement of this action.

SO ORDERED this=? 3 “day of M_ 2004.

WALTER S. SMITH, JR.
United States District Judge
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The parties hereby consent to the terms and conditions set forth above and hereby consent te entry
of this Stipulated Order for Permanent Injunction and Monetary Judgement at the Court’s
convenience and without further notice to the parties.

HOWREY SIMON ARNOLD & WHITE, LLP

Date: o"// 51%7’”0 %

Enc J. McCanhy

Charles Webb

1299 Pennsylvania Ave., NW
Washington, D.C. 20004
202-783-0800; 202-624-8925 (fax)

Artis G. Giotes

Matthew McClinton

801 Washington Street, Eighth Floor
Waco, Texas 76701-1289

(254) 297-7300; (254) 297-7301 (fax)

ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANTS

Date: Q_,/},/aﬁ/
PAUL McCLINTON, individually and

- as an officer of Electronic Financial
Group, Inc. and EFG Card Services, Inc.

| jf/’l/“) 4%4«/% | Date: /3 (2 0024

RY FE@MO individually and
as an officer of Electronic Financial
Group, Inc. and EFG Card Services, Inc.
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,//Z/z

a“.;Y‘;‘:\/ﬁl__USEK individually and
as cer of Electronic Financial

Group, Inc.

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

//Cuuﬂ / /g’ / @M

David R. pregel
James H. Davis
Lawrence Hodapp
600 Pennsylvania Avenue NW, H-238
Washington, D.C. 20580
Tel. {202) 326-3281
Fax. (202) 326-3395

James W. Jennings, Jr.

Assistant United States Attorney
601 N.W. Loop 410, Ste. 660
San Antonio, Texas 78216

Tel. (210) 384-7330

Fax (210) 384-7322

ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFF
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Date: Q%/wa

Date: ]//2/7/7” é'




